BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO

RECEIVED-DOCKETING DIV

2010 JUL - 1 PH 4: 28

Company, and The Toledo Edison
Company for Authority to Establish a
Standard Service Offer Pursuant to
Section 4928.143, Revised Code, in the
Form of an Electric Security Plan

In the Matter of Ohio Edison Company,

The Cleveland Electric Illuminating

SUPPLEMENTAL POST-HEARING BRIEF OF OHIO EDISON COMPANY,
THE CLEVELAND ELECTRIC ILLUMINATING COMPANY AND

Case No. 10-388-EL-SSO

James W. Burk, Counsel of Record

Arthur E. Korkosz Mark A. Hayden Ebony L. Miller

THE TOLEDO EDISON COMPANY

FIRSTENERGY SERVICE COMPANY

76 South Main Street Akron, Ohio 44308 Phone: (330) 384-5861 Facsimile: (330) 384-3875

E-mail: burkj@firstenergycorp.com korkosza@firstenergycorp.com haydenm@firstenergycorp.com elmiller@firstenergycorp.com

James F. Lang
Laura C. McBride
CALFEE, HALTER & GRISWOLD LLP
1400 KeyBank Center
800 Superior Avenue
Cleveland, Ohio 44114
Phone: (216) 622-8200

Facsimile: (216) 241-0816 E-mail: jlang@calfee.com lmcbride@calfee.com

This is to cortify that the images appearing are an accurate and complete reproduction of a case file document delivered in the regular course of Desiness. Technician And Date Processed 7/2/10

David A. Kutik (0006418) JONES DAY North Point 901 Lakeside Avenue Cleveland, Ohio 44114-1190 Telephone: 216-586-3939 Facsimile: 216-579-0212

Email: dakutik@jonesday.com

ATTORNEYS FOR APPLICANTS OHIO EDISON COMPANY, THE CLEVELAND ELECTRIC ILLUMINATING COMPANY, AND THE TOLEDO EDISON COMPANY

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. INTRODUCTION	1
II. ARGUMENT	3
A. Staff's Bill Analysis Complies With The Commission's Directive	3
The bill analysis was performed in accordance with the Commission's May 13 Entry	3
Apparent objections raised by other parties to Staff's bill analysis are without merit	4
(a) Staff's decision to use the assumptions embedded in the proposed ESP is reasonable	4
(b) It was reasonable for Staff to rely on the Companies to perform the actual bill impact calculations	5
(c) In light of the many variables affecting bill impacts under the proposed ESP, Staff reasonably confined its analysis to the first year of the proposal	6
(d) Staff's decision not to analyze bill impacts in the absence of the proposed ESP was reasonable	8
(e) It was reasonable for Staff not to include in its analysis the Companies' proposed reduction in the Generation Service Rider	8
(f) Staff assumed an appropriate level for the Delivery Capital Recovery Rider	9
(g) It is unreasonable and beyond the scope of the proceedings to require Staff to analyze whether bills will increase or decrease for select customers or to analyze customers' ability to pay bills under the proposed ESP	9
B. The Staff's Bill Impact Analysis Demonstrates The Reasonableness Of Adopting The Proposed ESP	10
C. Like the Stipulation, the Supplemental Stipulation Should Be Adopted	11
The Supplemental Stipulation meets the Commission's three-part test for evaluating stipulations	11
OCC's and the Citizens' Coalition's objections to the Supplemental Stipulation fail	13

Ш.	CONCLUSION	.14	4
----	------------	-----	---

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO

In the Matter of Ohio Edison Company,)	
The Cleveland Electric Illuminating)	
Company, and The Toledo Edison)	
Company for Authority to Establish a)	
Standard Service Offer Pursuant to	Ś	Case No. 10-388-EL-SSO
Section 4928.143, Revised Code, in the	Ó	
Form of an Electric Security Plan	ń	

I. INTRODUCTION

On March 23, 2010, Ohio Edison Company, The Cleveland Electric Illuminating
Company and The Toledo Edison Company (collectively the "Companies") filed the instant
Application and original supporting Joint Stipulation for an Electric Security Plan ("ESP")
pursuant to R.C. 4928.143. On April 20, 2010, the Commission commenced an evidentiary
hearing on the Application. On May 13, 2010, however, the Commission found that "additional
information regarding the impact of the proposed ESP on customer's bills [was] necessary" and
accordingly ordered Staff to "present a detailed analysis of the impact of the proposed ESP on
customer's bills." Entry on Reh'g dated May 13, 2010 ("May 13 Entry"), ¶ 17. Staff filed its
analysis and supporting testimony on June 10, 2010, and an additional hearing regarding that
analysis was held on June 21, 2010.

Based on the evidence presented at that hearing as well as in prior hearings in this case, the Commission should accept Staff's bill impact analysis and should approve the Stipulation and the Supplemental Stipulation. In conducting the analysis, Staff followed the format and included the categories of data that the Commission has adopted in other contexts. Staff's bill analysis is reasonable, and the Commission should find that it is consistent with its directive in the May 13 Entry.

The objections raised by other parties regarding Staff's analysis do not alter this conclusion. At hearing, counsel for the Office of Consumers' Counsel ("OCC"), the Natural Resources Defense Counsel ("NRDC") and the self-styled Citizens' Coalition appeared to suggest several apparent modifications to Staff's bill analysis, but all lack merit. As demonstrated below, some would unreasonably require Staff to predict the future and to guess at many uncertain variables. (See pp. 4-10, infra.) Some are beyond the scope of the Commission's May 13 Entry. (See id.) And others simply would be a waste of time. (See id.) None of the parties' objections should deter the Commission from finding that Staff's bill analysis was consistent with the May 13 Entry, or from approving the Stipulation together with the Supplemental Stipulation.

At hearing, the Attorney Examiner also received evidence in support of the Supplemental Stipulation in the form of live testimony by the Companies' witness William Ridmann. (See Tr., 68:17-70:10.) For the reasons set forth below and in the Companies' initial post-hearing brief, the Commission should approve the Stipulation and the Supplemental Stipulation. The latter amends the former by providing energy efficiency funding for two additional entities: the Council Of Smaller Enterprises ("COSE") and the City of Akron. (See pp. 13-14, infra.)

Here again, the apparent objections to those provisions are meritless. As demonstrated at hearing, COSE is an experienced, qualified administrator of energy efficiency programs. (*Id.* at 13, *infra.*) And the City of Akron is well-positioned to promote energy efficiency in communities that may be beyond the reach of traditional energy-efficiency initiatives. (*Id.* at 13-14, *infra.*) For these reasons, the Commission should approve the Stipulation and the Supplemental Stipulation.

II. ARGUMENT

- A. Staff's Bill Analysis Complies With The Commission's Directive.
 - The bill analysis was performed in accordance with the Commission's May 13 Entry.

In its May 13 Entry, the Commission ordered Staff to "present a detailed analysis of the impact of the proposed ESP on customers' bills." May 13 Entry, ¶ 17. The Commission did not, however, specify the process to be followed in conducting that analysis, the format in which it should be presented or the specific information it should include.

The Staff's analysis is consistent with similar analyses required by the Commission in other contexts. For example, Appendix A to Rule 4901-7-01 prescribes the content, format and basic parameters for "typical bill comparisons" in the context of distribution rate cases. *See* Rule 4901-7-01, Appx. A, Chap. II, Sec. D(D). Rule 4901-7-01 provides that typical bill comparisons should include, for each "level of demand" and "level of usage," the amount of the current bill, the amount of the proposed bill, and the actual dollar and percentage increase or decrease between the two. *See* Form for Sch. E-5 (attached hereto as Ex. A.). The rule also requires that a typical bill comparison include "[I]evels of consumption at both the present and proposed block ends" (*i.e.*, the greatest level of expected consumption) and "[I]evels of consumption which accurately represent customer consumption patterns." *See* Rule 4901-7-01, Chap. II, Sec. D(D).

Although Staff was under no obligation to meet the standards of Rule 4901-7-01 related to bill impacts, Staff's bill analysis provides much of what would be provided under that rule. The data included in Staff's analysis and the format in which it is presented are substantially identical to that provided in the rule. *Compare*, e.g., ESP Bill Analysis (attached to

The Companies will refer to the Appendix by reference to the rule itself ("Rule 4901-7-01").

Supplemental Prepared Testimony of Robert B. Fortney) dated June 10, 2010 with Ex. A. Moreover, Staff's analysis contains bill amounts accurately reflecting both customer consumption patterns and extreme levels of expected consumption. Thus, Staff's analysis easily satisfies the Commission's demand for a detailed bill impact analysis.

2. Apparent objections raised by other parties to Staff's bill analysis are without merit.

At hearing, counsel for three parties cross-examined Mr. Fortney on aspects of Staff's bill analysis. None of the apparent objections they raised should deter the Commission from accepting that analysis.

(a) Staff's decision to use the assumptions embedded in the proposed ESP is reasonable.

At hearing, OCC questioned Staff's decision to incorporate in its analysis the assumptions used by the Companies in generating the proposed ESP. (See, e.g., Tr., 29:25-30:7, 31:10-22.) Those assumptions, which are described in pre-filed testimony by the Companies' witness William Ridmann, relate to the level and applicability of various riders and credits that may appear on customers' bills during the period of the proposed ESP. (Dir. Testimony of William R. Ridmann ("Ridmann Dir."), Co. Ex. 4, pp. 15-17.) OCC apparently believes that it was improper for Staff to incorporate the Companies' assumptions in its own analysis.

As demonstrated at hearing, the opposite is true. It would have been improper (and contrary to the Commission's May 13 Entry) for Staff *not* to have included those assumptions, and Staff's bill analysis could not have been conducted any other way. In its May 13 Entry, the Commission required Staff to study the impact of the ESP as proposed by the Companies in order to give the Commission, parties and the public a fair sense of the proposal's impact on customers' bills. *See* May 13 Entry, ¶ 17. The only way for Staff to accomplish that task was to analyze the proposal according to the Companies' own assumptions, which are embedded in that

4

proposal. As Mr. Fortney testified, Staff's use of the Companies' assumptions was "as [it] should be. The assumptions are meant to reflect the ESP as proposed." (Tr., 30:6-7; see id. at 31:19-22 ("I will accept that that's correct without reading them word for word. . . . It was meant to be."), 33:25-34:1 ("My assumptions should be exactly the same as Mr. Ridmann's testimony, yes.").)

Had Staff not incorporated nearly all of the Companies' assumptions, it would have analyzed an ESP that was not what the Stipulation contemplated as a proposed ESP. This would have been contrary to the May 13 Entry, in which the Commission directed Staff to analyze the proposed ESP, not some other ESP as invented by OCC. Staff's decision to incorporate the Companies' assumptions was reasonable.²

(b) It was reasonable for Staff to rely on the Companies to perform the actual bill impact calculations.

OCC and the Natural Resources Defense Council ("NRDC") appeared to criticize Staff's analysis because the actual bill calculations were performed by the Companies rather than by Staff. (See, e.g., Tr., 24:7-12.) But this is beside the point. As Mr. Fortney testified, Staff discussed with the Companies the appropriate range of market-based generation prices and other parameters to be used in calculating the bill analysis. (Id. at 22:22-23:4.) Staff also reviewed and approved the assumptions incorporated into the calculations. (Fortney Dir., p. 1.) Because

OCC, attempting to have it both ways, also seemed to challenge an instance where Staff did *not* rely solely on the Companies' assumptions. Specifically, counsel for OCC questioned Mr. Fortney regarding Staff's recommendation that (i) 100% of PJM capacity costs be allocated to the Traffic Lighting Service ("TRF") tariff from June through September; and (ii) in the event of an overall average rate decrease, the maximum percent increase for the TRF, Street Lighting Service ("STL") and Private Outdoor Lighting Service ("POL") tariffs be capped at 0%. (Tr., 53:6-54:14.) As Mr. Fortney explained, both recommendations make sense. As he testified, "traffic lighting [rather than street and private outdoor lighting] tends to be the only lighting schedule that contributes to the coincident peaks in June through September." (Supplemental Prepared Testimony of Robert Fortney dated June 10, 2010 ("Fortney Dir."), pp. 4-5.) And as he explained, the 0% cap is necessary to avoid potentially large percentage increases in the TRF, STL and POL tariffs in the event of a systemwide decrease. (*Id.* at 5.) No party challenged the substance of these recommendations, and because they are reasonable, they were properly incorporated into Staff's analysis.

the "inputs" for the bill analysis thus were approved by Staff, the only thing left to do was simply "plug in" those inputs to calculate the bill impact figures. And because the Companies have the data and computational resources that allow them to more efficiently accomplish the task, it simply made more sense for them to perform the calculations. (Tr., 57:14-17.) Because Staff approved the inputs and has sponsored the resulting analysis, this was reasonable.

There is no reason why Staff needed to perform the calculations itself. At hearing, no party suggested any substantive difference between calculations performed by the Companies or by Staff (and because the assumptions and parameters were approved by Staff, there would have been no such difference). In fact, if Staff had performed the calculations, the only difference would have been a significant (and unnecessary) burden on Staff's time and resources. The May 13 Entry did not contemplate such a wasteful exercise.

(c) In light of the many variables affecting bill impacts under the proposed ESP, Staff reasonably confined its analysis to the first year of the proposal.

OCC appeared to challenge the fact that Staff's analysis compared the current ESP with the first year, rather than all three years, of the proposed ESP. (Tr., 37:8-20.) Specifically, Staff compared the summer bills under the current ESP (2010) to those of the first summer of the proposed ESP (2011), and current winter bills (2011) to the first winter of the proposed ESP (2012). (*Id.* at 36:18-37:3.) OCC apparently believes Staff should have analyzed bill impacts through May 2014, when the proposed ESP would expire, and that Staff should have incorporated in that extended analysis possible increases in certain riders over that time. (*See id.* at 38:1-7.)

This kind of extended and detailed prediction of the future is impracticable—if not impossible—to achieve in an accurate and reliable manner. Moreover, it is not what the Commission required. Any bill impact analysis will depend in large part on many variables,

including the actual generation bid price and the rates reflected in various riders. (See Tr., 60:2-8.) These variables, some of which depend on future Commission approval, simply cannot be predicted with certainty. For example, at hearing Mr. Fortney listed at least thirteen riders that are based on Commission-approved reconciliations and thus may increase or decrease in unpredictable amounts over the duration of the proposed ESP. (Id. at 44:9-45:25.)

To comply with the May 13 Entry, Staff had to make reasonable assumptions regarding those variables in the first year of the proposed ESP. However, every additional year of the proposed ESP brings more possible permutations of the riders and other variables and more uncertainty about the underlying assumptions. (*Id.* at 39:12-18.) Because of this increasing complexity, had Staff extended its analysis to the second and third years of the proposal, the analysis would have devolved into a dizzying exercise based largely (if not wholly) on bare assumptions (some untethered to any discernable fact or basis), resulting in an uninterpretably wide range of possible bill impacts. (*Id.* at 39:12-18 (analysis would yield "stacks of paper" that would be "meaningless"), 46:17-23 ("I have no idea [the amount] a Reconcilable Rider would increase. I don't know what assumption to put in there.").) This would not be helpful to either the parties or the Commission, and under these circumstances, it was reasonable for Staff to confine its analysis to the first year of the proposed ESP.³ Further, the range of possible outcomes of the auction process used by Staff in its analysis provides a band-width broad enough

At hearing, counsel for OCC repeatedly inquired about one variable in particular: the amount of switching or shopping that would take place under the proposed ESP. This variable, like the others discussed at hearing, is not susceptible of accurate prediction, and it is unreasonable to require Staff to guess. (Tr., 49:10-11 (switching "depends entirely on what the bid, the generation price bid comes [in] at"), 49:16 (Staff has "no expectations" regarding amount of switching).) As Mr. Fortney testified, the amount of switching that takes place will not affect the amount of the winning ESP bid. (Id. at 50:1-9.) Moreover, because the purpose of Staff's analysis was to present the bill impacts under the proposed ESP, it was reasonable to examine only the bills for customers who take generation service under that proposal. Notably, because the proposed ESP requires no minimum stay provisions, minimum default service charges, standby charges or shopping credit caps, the proposal will continue to support customer shopping. (See Ridmann Dir., p. 4.)

to provide reasonable assurance that, even with variations in rider levels, both up and down, it is probable that bill impacts will fall within that range.

(d) Staff's decision not to analyze bill impacts in the absence of the proposed ESP was reasonable.

OCC appeared to complain that Staff's analysis did not compare bills under the current ESP with future bills if the proposed ESP is not approved. (Tr., 42:5-8.) This challenge also fails. The Commission directed Staff to analyze the impact of the *approval* of the proposed ESP, not its *denial*. See May 13 Entry, ¶ 17. Moreover, bill impact studies in Commission proceedings are commonly understood to require a comparison only of the level of current bills with the level of bills under the proposed action. For example, that is exactly what the form Schedule E-5 requires, as prescribed by the Commission for use in base rate cases. Staff's analysis provides precisely the comparison that the Commission asked for in its May 13 Entry, in a way that is reasonable and consistent with the Commission-approved format. OCC cites nothing to suggest otherwise.

(e) It was reasonable for Staff not to include in its analysis the Companies' reduction in the Generation Service Rider.

OCC appeared to criticize Staff's analysis because the analysis did not account for the Companies' recent reduction in the Generation Service Rider ("Rider GEN"). (Tr., 52:12-53:5.)

This is meritless.

The reduction in Rider GEN resulted from a reduction in the ATSI transmission rate.

Under the Companies' current ESP, such changes in the ATSI transmission rate flow through to changes in Rider GEN. This reduction went into effect on June 1, 2010. The reduction to the ATSI transmission rate resulted in less than a one third of one percent reduction in the Rider GEN charge to customers. The change is not material to the Staff's analysis both due to: 1) the amount of the change is *de minimus*; and 2) incorporating such a change would have caused the

same adjustment on both sides of the bill analysis. Specifically, the Rider GEN charge on both the "current" side of the bill and the "proposed" side of the bill in the bill impact analysis would have decreased by the same amount: an average of \$0.00022/kWh. Since both sides of the analysis are decreasing by the same immaterial amount, making an adjustment for this amount would have no impact on the outcome of the bill analysis (*i.e.*, the difference between current rates and proposed rates would be unchanged). It thus would be unreasonable to require Staff to include it.

(f) Staff assumed an appropriate level for the Delivery Capital Recovery Rider.

OCC appeared to challenge Staff's (and the Companies') assumption that \$124 million will be collected through the Delivery Capital Recovery Rider ("Rider DCR") in the first year of the proposed ESP. (Tr., 34:7-35:4; see Ridmann Dir., Attachment WRR-1.) OCC apparently believes that figure should be \$150 million, which according to OCC is the first-year amount reflected in the original Stipulation. (Id. at 34:22-23.)

That belief is wrong. The original Stipulation sets a *cap* of \$150 million for the first year Rider DCR is in effect. (Stip., p. 14.) The \$150 million level is not intended to represent the actual amount of revenue expected to be collected through Rider DCR, and no party presented any evidence that the Companies' and Staff's assumption of \$124 million is unreasonable.

(g) It is unreasonable and beyond the scope of the proceedings to require Staff to analyze whether bills will increase or decrease for select customers or to analyze customers' ability to pay bills under the proposed ESP.

The Citizens' Coalition appeared to criticize Staff because it could not predict whether and exactly how much bills will decrease or increase (if either) under the proposed ESP, either in general or for low-income customers in particular. (Tr., 60:9-14, 63:5-9.) It is impossible to make such a prediction that is accurate and reliable. As Mr. Fortney testified, the main driver of

the actual ESP bill impact will be the generation price resulting from the SSO bidding process, which is proposed to take place in the future. (*Id.*, 60:2-8 ("By far the major factor in the ESP is what the option will provide.... So, yes, it is impossible to say the ESP will provide rates that are X without, first of all, without knowing what the market price could be.").) Because Staff's analysis reflects a reasonably wide range of possible bid prices, the analysis indicates likely scenarios for what the bill impacts *may* be (and in most of those scenarios, bills are expected to decrease for most customers). (*See* pp. 10-11, *infra.*) But because it is impossible to accurately predict the actual bid price, it is unreasonable to expect Staff to predict precisely what *will* happen, either in general or for particular customers at different income levels. The May 13 Entry required no such analysis, and Staff's refusal to do so was reasonable.

Similarly, the Citizens' Coalition appeared to suggest that Staff should have conducted an analysis of the effect of the proposed ESP on low-income customers in particular, ostensibly to determine their "ability to pay" those bills. (Tr., 66:3-7.) Notably, no party presented any evidence regarding how such analysis would be conducted, what data would be used or even whether it would be within Staff's technical capabilities. Moreover, an "ability to pay" inquiry is simply beyond the scope of the May 13 Entry, which required an analysis of the impact of the proposed ESP, not of certain customers' ability to pay bills.

B. The Staff's Bill Impact Analysis Demonstrates The Reasonableness Of Adopting The Proposed ESP.

As demonstrated above, Staff's bill analysis complies with the May 13 Entry, and if the Commission considers it in evaluating the proposed ESP (which it should), the thrust of that analysis is clear: the proposed ESP will benefit customers. When the Companies proposed the ESP, they described several types of benefits that would result from it, including greater price certainty and stability at a time of "historically low generation prices." (See Application, pp. 1,

3; Ridmann Dir., p. 3.) For these (and other) reasons, the Companies represented that the proposed ESP would be favorable for all of its customers. (See Ridmann Dir., p. 2.)

Staff's bill analysis supports these arguments. As Staff has concluded, nearly all customers (e.g., standard and non-standard residential customers and general service customers) at nearly all levels of usage likely will experience reductions in their summer and winter bills under the proposed ESP. (See "Typical Bills—Comparison" analysis, attached to Fortney Dir.) This is true for most customers even if the bid price resulting from the proposed ESP auction is the same as under the current ESP. (See id. at bill scenario "CBP Price = \$58.41/MWh; Adjusted LTG Caps; New Allocation of Capacity for LTG.") Staff's bill analysis demonstrates that the proposed ESP likely will result in more stable (and, for most customers, lower) bills, and for this additional reason, the Commission should approve it.

C. Like the Stipulation, the Supplemental Stipulation Should Be Adopted.

At the June 21, 2010 hearing, the Attorney Examiner heard testimony in support of the Supplemental Stipulation, which was filed on May 12, 2010. The Supplemental Stipulation modifies the original Stipulation in two ways, both of which relate to energy efficiency programs: (i) it adds COSE as an "energy efficiency administrator" and provides COSE with \$150,000 in funding over the next four years; and (ii) it provides the City of Akron with \$300,000 over the next three years to "help make energy efficiency programs available to [its] residents . . . and to enable the City of Akron to achieve its energy efficiency and sustainability goals." (Supplemental Stip., ¶¶ 1, 2; see Tr., 85:5-9.)

1. The Supplemental Stipulation meets the Commission's three-part test for evaluating stipulations.

The Commission should approve the Supplemental Stipulation. In determining whether to do so, the Commission must consider the following factors:

- 1. Is the stipulation the product of serious bargaining among capable, knowledgeable parties?
- 2. Does the stipulation as a whole benefit ratepayers and the public interest?
- 3. Does the stipulation violate any important regulatory principle or practice?

Indus. Energy Consumers of Ohio Power Co. v. Pub. Util. Comm., 68 Ohio St. 3d 559 (1994).

In their initial post-hearing brief, the Companies demonstrated that each of these factors were met for the original Stipulation. (See Post-Hearing Br. of Ohio Edison Co., The Cleveland Elec. Illuminating Co., and the Toledo Edison Co., dated Apr. 30, 2010 ("Post-Hearing Br."), pp. 23-24.) Those facts of record also support adopting the Supplemental Stipulation. See Tr., 72:23-73:19; Ridmann Dir., pp. 10-13. The Companies hereby incorporate those arguments in this supplemental brief.

At the June 21 hearing, Mr. Ridmann offered additional evidence demonstrating that the Commission should approve the Supplemental Stipulation. Specifically, Mr. Ridmann testified that the Supplemental Stipulation was sent to all parties—whether signatories to the original Stipulation or not—on April 27, 2010, two weeks before it was filed with the Commission. (Tr., 88:17-21.) Thus, all parties had an opportunity to review, analyze, and comment on it and participate in the related negotiations. (Tr., 88:17-21.) In fact, the Supplemental Stipulation remains open "for additional intervenors and parties to sign on as signatory parties" until the Commission issues its order in this case. (Supplemental Stip., p. 3.) The Supplemental Stipulation thus is the result of a serious bargaining process among capable parties, all of whom have had a fair opportunity to participate in that process.

2. OCC's and the Citizens' Coalition's objections to the Supplemental Stipulation fail.

At hearing, counsel for OCC and the Citizens' Coalition questioned Mr. Ridmann regarding aspects of the Supplemental Stipulation. Those parties' objections should not deter the Commission from approving the Supplemental Stipulation.

First, OCC appeared to criticize COSE's experience in administering energy efficiency programs. (See Tr., 76:3-79:11.) These criticisms are unfounded. As Mr. Ridmann testified, COSE is "active in the marketplace" and continually meets with its small business clients to educate them regarding energy efficiency and promote use of those programs. (Id. at 76:6-13, 76:20-77:6.) COSE explains energy efficiency rules to its clients and helps them navigate Ohio's regulatory environment. (Id. at 77:11-15, 78:8-13.) COSE also consults with clients regarding on-site projects, working with engineers and other specialists to help clients identify possible energy efficiency projects such as the installation of energy efficient equipment. (Id. at 76:22-76:6, 77:11-15.) Like the other energy efficiency administrators identified in the original Stipulation—the Association of Independent Colleges and Universities of Ohio, the Ohio Hospital Association and the Ohio Manufacturers' Association—COSE is an experienced, qualified administrator of energy efficiency programs that will help the Companies target customers who are likely to experience large gains in energy efficiency from those programs. And just as it should do for those other entities, the Commission should approve the signatories' agreement to provide energy efficiency funding to COSE.

Second, OCC appeared to criticize the addition of funding for the City of Akron, labeling it a program "that would serve a minority" of the Companies' customers. (See Tr., 86:5-14; Supplemental Stip., ¶ 2.) This misses the point. The City of Akron (and the City of Cleveland, for which the original Stipulation established an identical program) serve customers who

typically may be under-served and beyond the reach of traditional energy efficiency initiatives. (Tr., 86:9-14.) By providing additional funding to the City of Akron (and the City of Cleveland), the Companies can build on existing government services and outreach efforts to educate those customers about the importance of energy efficiency. The Commission should encourage those efforts by approving the Supplemental Stipulation.

Finally, counsel for the Citizens' Coalition appeared to criticize the signatories' agreement regarding the level of fuel funds provided for Ohio Partners for Affordable Energy. (See Tr., 92:25-93:5.) As an initial matter, this is beyond the scope of the June 21 hearing. The Supplemental Stipulation has no provisions regarding the fuel fund, which is addressed only by the original Stipulation. (See Stip., p. 32.) Moreover, the Citizens' Coalition presented no evidence at any hearing in this case suggesting that the amount of fuel funds is unreasonable. The Citizens' Coalition's disagreement with this level of funding is no reason to reject the Supplemental Stipulation.

III. CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, the Companies respectfully request that the Commission accept Staff's bill analysis and the Stipulation and the Supplemental Stipulation.

Dated: July 1, 2010

Respectfully submitted,

James W. Burk, Counsel of Record

Arthur E. Korkosz Mark A. Hayden Ebony L. Miller

FIRSTENERGY SERVICE COMPANY

1 Gu6 64

76 South Main Street Akron, Ohio 44308 Phone: (330) 384-5861

Facsimile: (330) 384-3875

E-mail: burkj@firstenergycorp.com korkosza@firstenergycorp.com

haydenm@firstenergycorp.com elmiller@firstenergycorp.com

James F. Lang
Laura C. McBride
CALFEE, HALTER & GRISWOLD LLP
1400 KeyBank Center
800 Superior Avenue
Cleveland, Ohio 44114
Phone: (216) 622-8200

Facsimile: (216) 221-8200
Facsimile: (216) 241-0816
E-mail: jlang@calfee.com
lmcbride@calfee.com

David A. Kutik (0006418)
JONES DAY
North Point
901 Lakeside Avenue
Cleveland, Ohio 44114-1190
Telephone: 216-586-3939
Facsimile: 216-579-0212
Email: dakutik@jonesday.com

ATTORNEYS FOR APPLICANTS OHIO EDISON COMPANY, THE CLEVELAND ELECTRIC ILLUMINATING COMPANY, AND THE TOLEDO EDISON COMPANY

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that a copy of the foregoing Supplemental Post-Hearing Brief was sent by

first class U.S. mail, postage prepaid, and e-mail to the following persons this 1st day of July,

2010:

Robert Fortney
Tammy Turkenton
Public Utilities Commission of Ohio
180 East Broad St., 3rd Floor
Columbus, Ohio 43215
robert.fortney@puc.state.oh.us
tammy.turkenton@puc.state.oh.us

Richard Cordray
Duane W. Luckey
Thomas McNamee
William L. Wright
Asst. Attorneys General
Public Utilities Section
180 E. Broad St., 6th Floor
duane.luckey@puc.state.oh.us
thomas.mcnamee@puc.state.oh.us
william.wright@puc.state.oh.us

Ohio Energy Group
Michael L. Kurtz
David F. Boehm
Kurt J. Boehm
Boehm, Kurtz & Lowry
36 East Seventh Street, Suite 1510
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202
mkurtz@BKLlawfirm.com
dboehm@bkllawfirm.com

Jeffrey L. Small
Gregory J. Poulos
Richard C. Reese
Ohio Consumers' Counsel
10 West Broad Street, 18th Floor
Columbus, Ohio 43215-3485
small@occ.state.oh.us
poulos@occ.state.oh.us
reese@occ.state.oh.us

Ohio Environmental Council
Barth E. Royer
Nolan Moser
Trent A. Dougherty
Bell & Royer, LPA
33 South Grant Avenue
Columbus, Ohio 43215
barthroyer@aol.com
nmoser@theoec.org
trent@theoec.org

Industrial Energy Users-Ohio
Samuel C. Randazzo
Lisa G. McAlister
Daniel J. Neilsen
Joseph M. Clark
McNees Wallace & Nurick LLC
21 East State St., 17th Floor
Columbus, Ohio 43215
sam@mwncmh.com
Imcalister@mwncmh.com
jclark@mwncmh.com

Ohio Partners for Affordable Energy David C. Rinebolt Colleen L. Mooney 231 West Lima Street P.O. Box 1793 Columbus, Ohio 43215 drinebolt@ohiopartners.org cmooney2@columbus.rr.com

Nucor Steel Marion, Inc.
Garrett A. Stone
Michael K. Lavanga
Brickfield, Burchette, Ritts & Stone
1025 Thomas Jefferson Street, NW
Eighth Floor, West Tower
Washington, DC 20007-5201
gas@bbrslaw.com
mkl@bbrslaw.com

Kroger Co.
John W. Bentine
Mark S. Yurick
Matthew S. White
Chester Wilcox & Saxbe, LLP
65 E. State St., Suite 1000
Columbus, Ohio 43215
jbentine@cwslaw.com
myurick@cwslaw.com
mwhite@cwslaw.com

Northwest Ohio Aggregation Coalition Leslie A. Kovacik 420 Madison Ave., Suite 100 Toledo, Ohio 43604-1219 leslie.kovacik@toledo.oh.gov

Constellation Energy Commodities Group
Constellation NewEnergy, Inc.
Direct Energy Services, Inc.
M. Howard Petricoff
Stephen M. Howard
Vorys, Sater, Seymour and Pease LLP
52 East Gay Street
P.O. Box 1008
Columbus, Ohio 43216-1008
mhpetricoff@vorys.com

Kevin Schmidt The Ohio Manufacturers' Association 33 North High Street Columbus, Ohio 43215-3005 kschmidt@ohiomfg.com

Cynthia A. Brady David I. Fein Constellation Energy Resources, LLC 550 West Washington Blvd., Suite 300 Chicago, Illinois 60661

Teresa Ringenbach Direct Energy Services LLC 5400 Frantz Rd., Suite 250 Dublin, Ohio 43016 teresa.ringenbach@directenergy.com

Ohio Hospital Association Richard L. Sites 155 E. Broad Street, 15th Floor Columbus, Ohio 43215-3620 ricks@ohanet.org

Thomas J. O'Brien Bricker & Eckler LLP 100 S. Third St. Columbus, Ohio 43215 tobrien@bricker.com Material Sciences Corporation Craig I. Smith 2824 Coventry Road Cleveland, Ohio 44120 wis29@yahoo.com

GEXA Energy - Ohio, LLC
Dane Stinson
Bailey Cavalieri LLC
10 West Broad Street, Suite 2100
Columbus, Ohio 43215
Dane.Stinson@baileyCavalieri.com

The City of Cleveland Robert J. Triozzi Steven L. Beeler 601 Lakeside Avenue, Room 106 Cleveland, Ohio 44114 rtriozzi@city.cleveland.oh.us sbeeler@city.cleveland.oh.us

Citizen Power
Theodore S. Robinson
2121 Murray Avenue
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15217
robinson@citizenpower.com

Citizens Coalition
Joseph P. Meissner
The Legal Aid Society of Cleveland
1223 West 6th Street
Cleveland, Ohio 44113
jpmeissn@lasclev.org

Morgan Stanley Capital Group Inc. Douglas M. Mancino McDermott Will & Emory LLP 2049 Century Park East Suite 3800 Los Angeles, California 90067-3218 dmancino@mwe.com

Gregory K. Lawrence 28 State Street McDermott Will & Emory LLP Boston, MA 02109 glawrence@mwe.com

Steve Huhman Morgan Stanley 2000 Westchester Ave. Purchase, NY 10577 steven.huhman@morganstanley.com

Natural Resources Defense Council Henry W. Eckhart 50 West Broad Street, #2117 Columbus, Ohio 43215 henryeckhart@aol.com

Association of Independent Colleges and Universities of Ohio
Gregory J. Dunn
Christopher Miller
Andre T. Porter
Schottenstein Zox & Dunn Co., LPA
250 West St.
Columbus, Ohio 43215
gdunn@szd.com
cmiller@szd.com
aporter@szd.com

Ohio Schools Council & NOPEC Glenn S. Krassen Matthew W. Warnock Bricker & Eckler LLP 1375 E. 9th Street, Suite 1500 Cleveland, Ohio 44114 gkrassen@bricker.com mwarnock@bricker.com

Duke Energy Retail Sales, LLC Michael D. Dortch Kravitz, Brown & Dortch, LLC 63 E. State St., Suite 200 Columbus, Ohio 43215 mdortch@kravitzllc.com

FirstEnergy Solutions Corp.
Michael Beiting
Morgan Parke
FirstEnergy Service Company
76 S. Main Street
Akron, Ohio 44308
beitingm@firstenergycorp.com
mparke@firstenergycorp.com

Daniel R. Conway Porter Wright Morris & Arthur 41 S. High Street Columbus, Ohio 43215

Environmental Law & Policy Center Michael E. Heintz Staff Attorney 1207 Grandview Ave. Suite 201 Columbus, Ohio 43212 mheintz@elpc.org

Cheri B. Cunningham Director of Law 161 South High Street Suite 202 Akron, Ohio 44308 Duke Energy Ohio Amy Spiller Duke Energy Business Services, Inc. 221 E. Fourth St., 25 Floor. Cincinnati, Ohio 45202 amy.spiller@duke-energy.com

Viridity Energy, Inc. Allen Freifeld Samuel A. Wolfe 100 W. Elm Street, Suite 410 Conshohocken, PA 19428 Council of Smaller Enterprises Eric D. Weldele Tucker, Ellis & West LLP 1225 Huntington Center 41 South High Street Columbus, Ohio 43215-6197

Charles R. Dyas, Jr.
Barnes & Thornburg LLP
Fifth Third Center
Suite 1850
21 East State Street
Columbus, Ohio 43215-4219
cdyas@btlaw.com

An Attorney for Respondent

Exhibit A

(Company)
Case No.
Typical Bill Comparison
(Electric, Gas, and Steam Utilities)

Schedule E-5
Page __ of __
Witness Responsible:

Data: __Months Actual & __Months Estimated Type of Filing: __Original __Updated __Revised Work Paper Reference No(s).:

	6 Change (J= <u>I-H)</u> (H)
	0
	Proposed Bill With Fuel Costs (I=D+G)
	Current Bill Inc. Fuel Costs (H=C+G)
	Annualized Fuel Cost Additions to Bill (G)
	% Increase (F=E+ C)
	Dollar Increase (B=D-C)
Cost)	Proposed Bill (D)
ss Gas or Fuel	Current Bill (C)
Bill Data (Le	Level of Usage (B)
	Level of Demand (A)
	Rate Code

Line No.